
 

 

San Mateo County Transportation Authority 
1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos, California 

 
Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 

Meeting Minutes 
 

November 1, 2022 
 

Members Present: 
(Via Teleconference 

B. Arietta (Chair)*, I. Bucio, K. Chin, J. Fox (Vice Chair) (joined at 5:11 pm), 
R. Hedges, K. Kuklin (left at 6:01 pm), S. Lang, J. Londer (left at 6:36 pm), 
G. Mattammal, E. Mizzi, P. Ohtaki, M. Rendon (left at 5:31 pm), M. Swire 

  
Members Absent: D. Bautista, D. Reed 
  
Staff Present: P. Skinner, H. El-Guindy, P. Gilster, A. Linehan, J. Brook 

 

* Rich Hedges chaired the meeting in place of Chair Barbara Arietta due to the technical 
considerations of conducting the meeting via teleconference.  

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

Rich Hedges called the meeting to order at 4:31 pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Announcement of New CAC Members 

2.a. Gus Mattammal 

2.b. Ethan Mizzi 

Mr. Hedges welcomed Gus Mattammal and Ethan Mizzi, who briefly introduced themselves. 

3. Roll Call 

Jean Brook, CAC Secretary, called the roll and confirmed that a quorum was present. 
 
4. Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda 

There were no comments. 
 
5. Consent Calendar 

5.a. Approval of Minutes of the CAC Meeting of October 4, 2022 

5.b. Approval of 2023 TA CAC Meeting Calendar 
  



 

 

TA Board Meeting Agenda for November 3, 2022 

5.c. TA Board Item 5.a Adoption of Resolution Making Findings that the Proclaimed State of 
Emergency for COVID-19 Continues to Impact the Board’s and Committees’ Ability to 
Meet Safely in Person, and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Board and Committee 
Meetings to Continue 

5.d. TA Board Item 5.c Acceptance of Statement of Revenues and Expenditures for the 
Period Ending September 30, 2022 

5.e. TA Board Item 5.d Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report and Fixed Income Market 
Review and Outlook 

Regarding Item #5e, Peter Ohtaki asked what the investment firm’s forecast was regarding 
interest rates over the next year. Connie Mobley-Ritter, Director, Treasury, said the investment 
banker’s response was that rates may go as high as another 125 basis points before the end of 
the calendar year.  

Sandra Lang said she would like to learn about the various financial terms discussed in the 
updates. Ms. Mobley-Ritter said staff could arrange to provide a financial “primer” at a future 
date. 

Motion/Second: Lang/Kuklin 
Ayes: Arietta, Bucio, Chin, Hedges, Kuklin, Lang, Londer, Mattammal, Mizzi, Ohtaki, Rendon, 
Swire 
Absent: Bautista, Fox, Reed 

6. TA Board Item 5.b Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of October 6, 
2022 

There were no comments. 

7. TA Board Item 10.a San Mateo 101 Express Lanes Quarterly Project Update 

Leo Scott, Co-Project Manager, Gray-Bowen-Scott, provided the presentation.  

Mike Swire asked what the projected traffic load would be on 101 once the lane opens. Mr. 
Scott said he expects congestion to continue to grow as more people return to offices for work. 
Heba El-Guindy, Acting Director of Program and Project Delivery, said they were doing a study 
of lane violations where drivers select a higher number on their transponders than the number 
of car occupants. 

Mr. Hedges said that people have been setting their transponders to indicate three occupants. 

John Fox joined the meeting at 5:11 pm. 

Mr. Mizzi asked how the toll lanes determined if drivers were being honest when using the 
transponders. Mr. Scott said that toll enforcement comes from the CHP (California Highway 
Patrol), who can pull a driver over if they suspect the number of occupants is lower than that 
indicated on the transponder.   



 

 

Ms. Lang asked how the CHP determines a violation. Mr. Scott said officers have access to the 
FasTrak system and can see the occupant setting selected by the driver as they pass by the 
tolling equipment. 

Karen Kuklin remarked that CHP officers will follow alleged violators until they can determine 
whether a violation has occurred. 

Public Comment: 

Raayan Mohtashemi commented that toll lanes should not be achieved through lane additions, 
which leads to increased traffic.  

Mario Rendon left the meeting at 5:31 pm. 

8. TA Board Item 10.b Pedestrian and Bicycle Program Report 

Jennifer Williams, Administrative Analyst II, provided the presentation. 

Mr. Ohtaki asked if the bicycle/pedestrian underpass at Middle Avenue had been submitted by 
the City of Menlo Park. Patrick Gilster, Manager, Planning and Fund Management, said the 
project had been recommended during Cycle 5 and that they were currently working with City 
staff. 

Mr. Swire asked what the submission guidelines were. Mr. Gilster said he would describe the 
guidelines and evaluation criteria as part of Item #9 and noted that the Strategic Plan 2020-
2024 contains the project evaluation criteria.  

Vice Chair John Fox said that some of the features preclude street sweeping. He said it was 
important to use traffic engineering knowledge to include all needed features. 

Ivan Bucio asked if signage was planned to direct electric scooters off the sidewalks. Mr. Gilster 
said it is up to the local jurisdictions to adopt new policies regarding electric scooters. 

Public Comment: 

Mr. Mohtashemi said MTC (Metropolitan Transportation Commission) and C/CAG (City/County 
Association of Governments of San Mateo County) should encourage mandates to improve 
design requirements that would make roads safer for cyclists and pedestrians.  

9. TA Board Item 10.c Pedestrian and Bicycle Program 2022 Cycle 6 Call for Projects Draft 
Recommendations 

Mr. Gilster provided the presentation.  

Karen Kuklin left the meeting at 6:01 pm. 

Vice Chair Fox asked if money is advanced from a future cycle that there will be less money in 
the future, and Mr. Gilster concurred. Vice Chair Fox suggested selectively advancing funding 
based on project ranking.  

Mr. Swire asked in terms of best practices if FHWA (Federal Highway Administration) standards 
were used as an alternative to those of NACTO (National Association of City Transportation 
Officials). Mr. Gilster said that FHWA worked with NACTO to develop the standards. 



 

 

Ken Chin said he was in favor of advancing funds for large projects without waiting until the 
next cycle. He also suggested funding a lot of smaller projects that could be completed quickly.  

Ethan Mizzi asked why the Town of Atherton and the City of South San Francisco are being 
asked to submit feasibility studies. Mr. Gilster said it was because they would like more 
information about the proposed projects, which is similar to what other applicants had done.  

Vice Chair Fox said funding several small projects instead of one large project could potentially 
benefit more people for less money. Mr. Gilster said that the evaluation committee looks at 
those factors before making funding decisions.  

Ms. Lang asked if the allocation of points was fixed by the Strategic Plan. Mr. Gilster said the 
points were fixed but could be updated with the next update of the Plan. 

Mr. Ohtaki said it makes sense to move forward with smaller projects and those projects that 
have an alternative source of funding. 

Mr. Swire said he supported the proposal to accelerate the smaller projects to maximize 
benefit. 

Mr. Hedges asked how a safe bike line could be installed on 19th Avenue in San Mateo. Mr. 
Gilster said the project where the bike lanes would be fully separated from traffic would be 
kicking off in December. 

Public Comment: 

Mr. Mohtashemi said he concurred that the bike lanes along 19th Avenue were unsafe and 
requested that the project be initiated without delay.  

Jeff Londer left the meeting at 6:36 pm. 

10. TA Board Item 11.a Acceptance of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Jennifer Ye, Director, Accounting, provided the presentation. 

Mr. Ohtaki asked for confirmation that when the securities that are currently part of the $14.4 
million eventually mature, would they not be considered a loss. Ms. Ye said if they hold the 
bonds to maturity, they will get the principal plus interest back, so they would not see an 
investment loss due to market value adjustments. 

Motion/Second: Arietta/Ohtaki 
Ayes: Arietta, Bucio, Chin, Fox, Hedges, Lang, Mattammal, Mizzi, Ohtaki, Swire 
Absent: Bautista, Kuklin, Londer, Reed, Rendon 

  



 

 

11. TA Board Item 12 State and Federal Legislative Update 

Amy Linehan, Government and Community Affairs Officer, provided a summary of federal and 
state legislation.  

On the federal side, she said there would be a lame duck session between the election and 
when Congress reconvenes. She said they are working to pass the funding bill before 
December 16 so as not to have another continuing resolution to keep the government funded. 
She said the federal lobbyists would be attending the next Board meeting on December 1. 

On the state side, she said they would the current session would conclude November 30 and 
reconvene in January.  

Mr. Ohtaki asked about the most recent infrastructure bill that had passed earlier in the year, 
asking where is the TA in getting needed funding from the bill. Ms. Linehan said that staff has 
worked to ensure that all the localities are aware of information about available grant 
opportunities. She added that the website is continually updated to share opportunities with 
San Mateo County agencies. 

 

12. Report of the Chair 

Chair Arietta reported on the appointment of April Chan as the new Executive Director of the 
TA and General Manager/CEO of SamTrans.  

13. Report From Staff 

Peter Skinner, Executive Officer, Transportation Authority, said his report was in the packet. 

14. Member Comments/Requests 

Mr. Hedges said that he had recently attended a meeting on the Link21 project, which 
advocates building a new transbay passenger rail crossing between Oakland and San Francisco. 
 
15. Date/Time of Next Regular Meeting 

Mr. Hedges announced that the next meeting would be held on Tuesday, November 29, 2022, 
at 4:30 pm via Zoom teleconference (additional location, if any, to be determined). 

16. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 7:13 pm. 
 
An audio/video recording of this meeting is available online at https://www.smcta.com/about-us/board-
directors/video-board-directors-cac-and-smcel-jpa. Questions may be referred to the Authority 
Secretary's office by phone at 650.508.6242 or by email to board@smcta.com. 

https://www.smcta.com/about-us/board-directors/video-board-directors-cac-and-smcel-jpa
https://www.smcta.com/about-us/board-directors/video-board-directors-cac-and-smcel-jpa
mailto:board@smcta.com

